Edgar Filing: PARTNER COMMUNICATIONS CO LTD - Form 6-K

PARTNER COMMUNICATIONS CO LTD
Form 6-K
April 03,2012

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM 6-K

REPORT OF FOREIGN PRIVATE ISSUER
PURSUANT TO RULE 13a-16 OR 15a-16 OF
THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
Report on Form 6-K dated

April 3,2012

Partner Communications Company Ltd.
(Translation of Registrant’s Name Into English)

8 Amal Street

Afeq Industrial Park
Rosh Ha’ayin 48103
Israel

(Address of Principal Executive Offices)

(Indicate by check mark whether the registrant files or will file annual reports
under cover of Form 20-F or Form 40-F.)

Form 20-F x Form 40-F o

(Indicate by check mark whether the registrant by furnishing the

information contained in this Form is also thereby furnishing the information to the
Commission pursuant to Rule 12g3-2(b) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934.)

Yeso Nox

(If “Yes” is marked, indicate below the file number assigned to the
registrant in connection with Rule 12g3-2(b): 82- )

This Form 6-K is incorporated by reference into the Company’s Registration Statements on Form S-8 filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on December 4, 2002 (Registration No. 333-101652), September 5, 2006
(Registration No. 333-137102) and on September 11, 2008 (Registration No. 333-153419)

Enclosure: Materials for the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders.



Edgar Filing: PARTNER COMMUNICATIONS CO LTD - Form 6-K




Edgar Filing: PARTNER COMMUNICATIONS CO LTD - Form 6-K

Rosh Ha’ayin, Israel
April 3, 2012

PARTNER COMMUNICATIONS COMPANY LTD.
NOTICE OF
ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS

Notice is hereby given that a general meeting of shareholders constituting an Annual General Meeting (the “AGM”) of
Partner Communications Company Ltd. (the “Company”, “Partner” or “we”) will be held on Tuesday May 8, 2012 at 10:00
a.m. (Israel time), at our offices, 8 Ha’amal Street, Rosh Ha’ayin, Israel or at any adjournment thereof.

It is proposed at the AGM to adopt the following resolutions:

(1) to re-appoint Kesselman & Kesselman, independent certified public accountants in Israel and a member of
PricewaterhouseCoopers International Limited group, as the Company's auditor for the period ending at the close
of the next annual general meeting;

(2) to discuss the auditor’s remuneration for the year ended December 31, 2011, as determined by the Audit
Committee and by the Board of Directors, and the report of the Board of Directors with respect to the
remuneration paid to the auditor and its affiliates for the year ended December 31, 2011;

(3)to discuss the Company’s audited financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2011 and the report of the
Board of Directors for such period;

(4)to re-elect the following directors to the Company’s Board of Directors until the close of the next annual general
meeting: Mr. Ilan Ben Dov, Dr. Shlomo Nass, Dr. Arie Ovadia, Mr. Yahel Shachar, Mr. Arie (Arik) Steinberg and
Mr. Avi Zeldman; to approve the compensation terms of several directors; to approve (subject to the adoption of
Resolution 8 below) indemnification of the directors up for re-election at the AGM and of Ms. Osnat Ronen; and
to approve that no change is made to the D&O insurance of the directors up for re-election at the AGM and of Ms.
Osnat Ronen;

(5)to approve (i) the re-appointment of Dr. Michael Anghel as an external director (Dahatz), and (ii) to approve his
remuneration, to approve (subject to the adoption of Resolution 8 below) his indemnification, and to approve that

no change is made to his D&O insurance policy;

6) to approve amendments to certain provisions of the Company’s Articles of Association;
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@) to approve amendments to certain provisions of the Company’s 2004 Share Option Plan;

(8)to approve and ratify the grant of Indemnification Letters to the following directors: (i) Dr. Michael Anghel, (ii)
Mr. Barry Ben-Zeev (Woolfson), (iii) Ms. Osnat Ronen, (iv) Mr. Arie (Arik) Steinberg, (v) Mr. Avi Zeldman, (vi)
Mr. Ilan Ben Dov, (vii) Dr. Shlomo Nass, (viii) Dr. Arie Ovadia, and (ix) Mr. Yahel Shachar.

The vote of the holders of a majority of the Ordinary Shares, par value NIS 0.01 per share (the “Ordinary Shares”)
participating at the AGM and voting on the matter is required for the approval of items no. 1, 4, 5(ii), 7, and 8(i)-8(v)
on the agenda. No vote is required in connection with the discussion of items 2-3 on the agenda.

The vote of the holders of a majority of the Ordinary Shares participating at the AGM and voting on the matter will be
required for the approval of item no. 5(i) on the agenda; provided, that one of the following conditions is fulfilled: (i)
the majority of votes in favor of the matter shall include at least a majority of the votes of shareholders not
constituting "Controlling Parties" (as stated in the Israeli Companies Law (1999), as amended (the “Israeli Companies
Law”)) in the Company, or these having a Personal Interest (as defined in the Israeli Companies Law) in the
appointment approval (other than a Personal Interest not resulting from relations to the Controlling Party) participating
in the vote; which votes shall not include abstaining votes; or (ii) the total number of objecting votes of the
shareholders mentioned in clause (i) does not exceed 2% of the total voting rights in the Company.

The vote of holders of at least seventy five percent (75%) of the Ordinary Shares participating at the AGM and voting
on the matter is required for the approval of item no. 6 on the agenda; provided, that with respect to amendment of
certain articles specified in the attached Proxy Statement, one of the following conditions is also fulfilled: (i) the
majority of votes in favor of the matter shall include at least a majority of the votes of shareholders not having a
Personal Interest in the resolution participating in the vote; which votes shall not include abstaining votes; or (ii) the
total number of objecting votes of the shareholders mentioned in clause (i) does not exceed 2% of the total voting
rights in the Company.

The vote of the holders of a majority of the Ordinary Shares participating at the AGM and voting on the matter will be
required for the approval of items no. 8(vi)-8(ix) on the agenda; provided, that one of the following conditions is
fulfilled: (i) the majority of votes in favor of the matter shall include at least a majority of the votes of shareholders
not having a Personal Interest in the resolution participating in the vote; which votes shall not include abstaining
votes; or (ii) the total number of objecting votes of the shareholders mentioned in clause (i) does not exceed 2% of the
total voting rights in the Company.

Only shareholders of record at the close of business on April 9, 2012 (the “Record Date”) will be entitled to participate

in and vote at the AGM, subject to the restrictions in the Company’s Articles of Association, as set forth in the attached
Proxy Statement. All shareholders are cordially invited to attend the AGM in person.
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The Israeli Companies Regulations (Deeds of Vote and Position Notices) of 2005 state that shareholders who will not
attend the AGM in person may vote with respect to items no. 4-6, and 8 on the agenda by completing the second part
of a Hebrew form of Deed of Vote (ktav hatzba'a). For the shareholders' convenience, items no. 1-3 and 7 on the
agenda are also included in the Deed of Vote (although said items are not subject to the provisions of such
regulations), and an English convenience translation of the Deed of Vote is included. Under such regulations, the
shareholders may also submit a position notice (hodaat emda) to the Company’s office (envelope marked clearly as
“position notice”, to the Company’s Acting Chief Legal Counsel and Company Secretary, at the address stated above) in
respect of items no. 4-6 and 8§ on the agenda, no later than ten days following the Record Date (April 19, 2012). The
deadline for submission of the Board of Directors’ response to such position notices is April 26, 2012. The Hebrew
form of the Deed of Vote and position notices (if any) are available on the websites: www.magna.isa.gov.il or
www.maya.tase.co.il; and a convenience translation of the documents into English is available on Form 6-K at the
U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission’s EDGAR System http://www.sec.gov/edgar.shtml.

Shareholders who will not attend the AGM in person are requested to complete, date and sign the aforementioned
form of Deed of Vote (either the English or the Hebrew version) distributed herewith and to return it promptly (and in
any event at least seventy two hours prior to the time of the AGM) to the Company at its address above.

The Company’s Articles of Association also allow shareholders registered in the Company’s Shareholders Register to
appoint a proxy to vote in their stead (whether personally or by means of a Deed of Vote) at the AGM, by means of a
Deed of Authorization in the form attached to this Proxy Statement, so long as the Deed of Authorization is delivered
to the Company at least two Business Days (as defined in the Company's Articles of Association) prior to the date of
the AGM. Shareholders may revoke their Deeds of Authorization by written notice received at the offices of the
Company prior to the commencement of the AGM, and vote their shares in person.

Two or more shareholders holding Ordinary Shares conferring in the aggregate at least one-third of our voting rights,
present in person or by proxy at the AGM, or who have delivered to us a Deed of Vote, will constitute a lawful
quorum at the AGM. Should no lawful quorum be present one half hour following the time set for the AGM, the
AGM shall be adjourned to Tuesday, May 15, 2012, at the same time and place.

A shareholder is entitled to contact the Company directly and receive the text of the Deed of Vote (ktav hatzba'a) and
the Position Notices (hodaot emda).

A shareholder, whose shares are registered with a member of the Tel-Aviv Stock Exchange Ltd. (the “Exchange”), is
required to prove his share ownership to vote at the AGM. Such shareholder shall provide the Company with an
ownership certificate (as of the Record Date) from that Exchange member and is entitled to receive the ownership
certificate in the branch of the Exchange member or by mail to his address (in consideration of mailing fees only), if
the shareholder so requested. Such a request will be made in advance for a particular securities account.
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A shareholder, whose shares are registered with an Exchange member, is entitled to receive from the Exchange
member who holds the share on the shareholder’s behalf, by e-mail, for no charge, a link to the text of the Deed of
Vote and to the Position Notices posted on the Israel Securities Authority website, unless the shareholder notified that
the shareholder is not so interested; provided, that the notice was provided with respect to a particular securities
account, prior to the Record Date.

Copies of the proposed resolutions are available at our offices, 8 Ha’amal Street, Rosh Ha’ayin, Israel, every business
day from 9 a.m. to 5 p.m. (Israel time), following coordination at telephone number +972-54-7814191.

By Order of the Board of Directors
YONIT RAVIV, ADV.

Acting Chief Legal Counsel
and Company Secretary
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PARTNER COMMUNICATIONS COMPANY LTD.
8 Ha’amal Street
Rosh Ha’ayin 48103, Israel

PROXY STATEMENT

This Proxy Statement is furnished to the holders of Ordinary Shares, par value NIS 0.01 per share (the “Ordinary
Shares”), including holders of American Depositary Shares (each representing one Ordinary Share, the “ADSs”) of
Partner Communications Company Ltd. (the “Company”, “Partner” or “we”) in connection with the solicitation by the Board
of Directors of proxies for use at a general meeting of shareholders constituting an Annual General Meeting (the
“AGM?”), to be held on Tuesday May 8, 2012 commencing at 10:00 a.m. (Israel time), at our offices, 8§ Ha’amal Street,
Rosh Ha’ayin, Israel, or at any adjournment thereof.

It is proposed at the AGM to adopt the following resolutions:

(1) to re-appoint Kesselman & Kesselman, independent certified public accountants in Israel and a member of
PricewaterhouseCoopers International Limited group, as the Company's auditor for the period ending at the close
of the next annual general meeting;

(2) to discuss the auditor’s remuneration for the year ended December 31, 2011, as determined by the Audit
Committee and by the Board of Directors, and the report of the Board of Directors with respect to the
remuneration paid to the auditor and its affiliates for the year ended December 31, 2011;

(3)to discuss the Company’s audited financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2011 and the report of the
Board of Directors for such period;

(4)to re-elect the following directors to the Company’s Board of Directors until the close of the next annual general
meeting: Mr. Ilan Ben Dov, Dr. Shlomo Nass, Dr. Arie Ovadia, Mr. Yahel Shachar, Mr. Arie (Arik) Steinberg and
Mr. Avi Zeldman; to approve the compensation terms of several directors; to approve (subject to the adoption of
Resolution 8 below) indemnification of the directors up for re-election at the AGM and of Ms. Osnat Ronen; and
to approve that no change is made to the D&O insurance of the directors up for re-election at the AGM and of Ms.
Osnat Ronen;

(5)to approve (i) the re-appointment of Dr. Michael Anghel as an external director (Dahatz), and (ii) to approve his

remuneration, to approve (subject to the adoption of Resolution 8 below) his indemnification, and to approve that
no change is made to his D&O insurance policy;
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(6) to approve certain amendments to provisions in the Company’s Articles of Association;
@) to approve certain amendments to the Company’s 2004 Share Option Plan;

(8)to approve and ratify the grant of Indemnification Letters to the following directors: (i) Dr. Michael Anghel, (ii)
Mr. Barry Ben-Zeev (Woolfson), (iii) Ms. Osnat Ronen, (iv) Mr. Arie (Arik) Steinberg, (v) Mr. Avi Zeldman, (vi)
Mr. Ilan Ben Dov, (vii) Dr. Shlomo Nass, (viii) Dr. Arie Ovadia, and (ix) Mr. Yahel Shachar.

A form of a Deed of Vote (English and Hebrew versions) for use at the AGM (either the English or the Hebrew
version) is distributed herewith. With respect to Items no. 4-6 and 8 on the agenda, the Deed of Vote shall also be
deemed as a Deed of Vote (Ktav Hatzba'a) under the Israeli Companies Law of 1999, as amended (the "Israeli
Companies Law") and Israeli Companies Regulations (Deeds of Vote and Position Notices) of 2005. Shareholders
may withdraw their Deed of Vote by contacting the Company at its address above and duly proving their identity, at
least 24 hours prior to the AGM and vote their shares in person. Ordinary Shares represented by any Deed of Vote in
the English or the Hebrew version distributed herewith, if properly executed and delivered to the Company at the
address above at least seventy two hours prior to the time of the AGM, will be voted as indicated on the form.

In parallel to distribution of this Notice and Proxy Statement, the aforementioned Hebrew version of a Deed of Vote
(ktav hatzba'a) per Israeli requirements and an English version of a Deed of Vote will be distributed among the
shareholders. The shareholders are requested to send only one version of a Deed of Vote (an English version or a
Hebrew version, but not both). If both versions will be sent by shareholders, in case of contradiction between the two
versions (as determined by the acting Company’s Secretary), the vote shall be disqualified.

Proxies for use at the AGM are being solicited by the Board of Directors of the Company. Only shareholders of record
at the close of business on April 9, 2012, will be entitled to participate in and vote at the AGM. Proxies are being
mailed to non-registered shareholders on or about April 3, 2012 and will be solicited primarily by mail; however,
certain of our officers, directors, employees and agents, none of whom will receive additional compensation therefor,
may solicit proxies by telephone, e-mail or other personal contact. Partner will bear the cost of the solicitation of the
proxies by the Board of Directors, including postage, printing and handling, and will reimburse the reasonable
expenses of brokerage firms and others for forwarding material to beneficial owners of Ordinary Shares.

On April 1, 2012, the Company had outstanding 155,645,708 Ordinary Shares, excluding 4,467,990 treasury shares.
The holder of each Ordinary Share is entitled to one vote upon each of the matters to be presented at the AGM.

Registered joint holders of shares should take note that, pursuant to the Articles of Association of the Company, only
the first named joint holder of any share shall vote, either in person, by proxy or by Deed of Vote, without taking into
account the other registered joint holder(s) of the share. For this purpose, the first named joint holder shall be the
person whose name is registered first in the Shareholders Register.
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Holders of ADSs are not registered in the Company’s Shareholders Register but may instruct the Depositary, Citibank,
N.A., as to the exercise of the voting rights pertaining to the Ordinary Shares evidenced by their ADSs in the manner
and to the extent provided in the Depositary Agreement governing the ADSs.

k ok sk ok sk

ITEMS 1 AND 2 — RE-APPOINTMENT OF
AUDITOR AND DISCUSSION OF ITS REMUNERATION

Under the Israeli Companies Law and the Company’s Articles of Association, the shareholders of the Company are
authorized to appoint the Company’s auditor, and the Board of Directors is authorized to determine the auditor’s
remuneration. Under the Company’s Articles of Association, the Board of Directors is required to report the auditor’s
remuneration to the shareholders and the shareholders are required to discuss that report. In addition, the approval by
the Audit Committee of the auditor’s re-appointment and remuneration is required under the Nasdaq Corporate
Governance Rules.

The Audit Committee has approved, and the Board of Directors has recommended, that Kesselman & Kesselman,
independent certified public accountants in Israel and a member of the PricewaterhouseCoopers International Limited
group (“Kesselman & Kesselman”), be re-appointed as auditor of the Company for the period ending at the close of the
next annual general meeting.

The Audit Committee and the Board of Directors have determined that the remuneration of Kesselman & Kesselman,
the Company’s auditor, for the year ended December 31, 2011, and its affiliates will be NIS 3,403 thousand for audit
fees (including SOX audit), NIS 668 thousand for audit-related fees, and NIS 454 thousand for tax fees. Partner has
agreed to indemnify Kesselman & Kesselman, and their personnel from any and all third party claims, liabilities, costs
and expenses, including reasonable attorney’s fees, arising from or relating to services rendered under the Tax Services
engagement letter for the year 2011, except to the extent finally determined to have resulted from the gross
negligence, willful misconduct or fraudulent behavior of Kesselman & Kesselman relating to such services.

It is proposed that at the AGM the following resolutions be adopted:

1.“RESOLVED, that the Company’s auditor, Kesselman & Kesselman, is hereby re-appointed as the auditor of the
Company for the period ending at the close of the next annual general meeting”

The vote of the holders of a majority of the Ordinary Shares participating at the AGM and voting on the matter is
required for the approval of this resolution.

The Board of Directors recommends a vote FOR approval of this proposed resolution.
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It is proposed that at the AGM the following matter be discussed:

2.“The remuneration of the auditor and its affiliates for the year 2011 as determined by the Audit Committee and by
the Board of Directors and the report by the Board of Directors of the remuneration of the auditor and its affiliates
for the same period are hereby noted.”

No vote of the holders of Ordinary Shares is required in connection with discussion of this item 2.
ITEM 3 — DISCUSSION OF THE COMPANY’S AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Audit Committee has approved (pursuant to the Nasdaq Corporate Governance Rules) and recommended, and the
Board of Directors has approved (pursuant to the Israeli Companies Law), the audited financial statements of the
Company for the year ended December 31, 2011, attached hereto as Annex “A”. Under the Israeli Companies Law and
the Company’s Articles of Association, shareholders’ discussion is required for both the financial statements and the
related report of the Board of Directors, which is attached hereto as Annex “B”. A representative of the Company’s
auditor, Kesselman & Kesselman, is expected to be present at the AGM, and will be available to respond to
appropriate questions of shareholders.

It is proposed that at the AGM the following matter be discussed:

“The audited financial statements of the Company for the year ended December 31, 2011 and the report of the Board
of Directors for such period are hereby noted.”

No vote of the holders of Ordinary Shares is required in connection with discussion of this item 3.

ITEM 4 — RE-ELECTION OF THE COMPANY’S DIRECTORS, APPROVAL
OF COMPENSATION AND RELATED MATTERS

Under the Israeli Companies Law, the directors of the Company (other than the external directors (Dahatzim) who
generally serve for three year terms) shall be appointed at the annual general meeting unless otherwise provided in the
Company’s Articles of Association. The elected directors shall commence their terms at the close of the AGM and
serve in office until the close of the next annual general meeting, unless their office becomes vacant earlier in
accordance with the provisions of the Israeli Companies Law and the Company’s Articles of Association or unless
otherwise provided in the Company’s Articles of Association.

_9.
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In accordance with Section 22A3 of the Company’s General License for the Provision of Mobile Radio Telephone
Services using the Cellular Method in Israel dated April 7, 1998, as amended (the “License”), and with Article 23.2.6 of
the Company’s Articles of Association, notwithstanding any other provision of the Articles of Association, a Qualified
Israeli Director (as defined in the Articles of Association) shall be appointed as a member of the Board of Directors,
and may be removed from such office, only upon written notice to the Company Secretary of his or her appointment
or removal by Founding Israeli Shareholders holding Minimum Israeli Holding Shares (as both terms are defined in
the Articles of Association) (the "Founding Israeli Shareholders"). The Founding Israeli Shareholders have appointed
Ms. Osnat Ronen as a Qualified Israeli Director on or prior to December 8, 2009. Ms. Ronen has been a director in the
Company since December 2009 and is currently a member of the Hedging Committee, the Debt Committee, the
Security Committee and the Corporate Governance Committee. She has served as a General Partner of Viola Private
Equity since January 2008. From 2001 until 2007, Ms. Ronen was the Deputy Chief Executive Officer of Leumi
Partners Ltd., the investment banking services arm of the Leumi Group. Between 2004 and 2007, Ms. Ronen was the
Deployment Strategy & Execution Manager of the Bachar reform implementation of the Leumi Group which included
management of the sale of provident and trust funds of the Group. Prior to these positions, she served as Deputy Head
of the Subsidiaries Division of The Leumi Group from 1999 until 2001. Ms. Ronen served on the Board of Directors
of the following companies: the Paz Group, Direct Insurance Ltd., Leumi Card Ltd., Fox-Weizel Ltd., Arab Israeli
Bank, Leumi Mortgage Bank and more. Currently, Ms. Ronen serves as a director on the Board of Directors of the
following companies: Matomy Media Group Ltd., Amiad Filtration Systems Ltd., Aeronautics Systems Ltd., Degania
Medical Ltd. and Orad Hi-tech Ltd. Ms. Ronen holds a B.Sc. degree in mathematics and computer science and an
M.B.A. degree, both from Tel Aviv University. To the best knowledge of the Company and the Company's Directors,
Ms. Ronen is not a Family Member of another Interested Party (as both terms are defined in the Israeli Securities Act
of 1968) in the Company. No further notice of appointment or removal of a Qualified Israeli Director was received by
the Company from the Founding Israeli Shareholders. Ms. Ronen's re-appointment is not brought to the shareholders
approval at the AGM and she continues to be a Qualified Israeli Director, until a contrary notice is duly received by
the Company from the Founding Israeli Shareholders pursuant to the Company’s Articles of Association (unless her
office becomes vacant earlier in accordance with the provisions of the Israeli Companies Law and the Company's
Articles of Association).

Under the Company's Articles of Association, the Board of Directors has the right to elect any person as a director and
to fill an office which became vacant. Any director elected in such manner shall serve in office until the coming
annual meeting and may be re-elected. Accordingly, the Board of Directors has elected Dr. Arie Ovadia as of
November 22, 2011 and Mr. Arie (Arik) Steinberg as of January 29, 2012, as directors of the Company.
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All the directors listed below will terminate their office as directors of the Company as of the end of the AGM. It is
proposed that these directors be re-elected until the close of the next annual general meeting, unless their office
becomes vacant earlier in accordance with the provisions of the Israeli Companies Law and the Company's Articles of
Association. No change is made hereby to the service of Ms. Osnat Ronen as a Qualified Israeli Director and to the
service of Mr. Barry Ben-Zeev (Woolfson) as an external director (Dahatz) of the Company. Dr. Michael Anghel, the
Company’s other external director (Dahatz), is proposed for re-election under item 5 below. The service of Mr.
Zeldman was recommended by Bank Leumi Ltd. and, as announced in 2009 by Scailex Corporation Ltd. (“Scailex”), the
Controlling Party (as stated in the Israeli Companies Law) of the Company, Scailex must use its voting power in the
Company to cause the election of at least one director recommended by Bank Leumi Ltd.

The Board of Directors has determined that the board should include at least three directors who are
“accounting and financial experts” under the Israeli Companies Law and regulations promulgated thereunder. Mr. Ilan
Ben Dov, Dr. Michael Anghel, Mr. Barry Ben-Zeev (Woolfson), Dr. Shlomo Nass, Dr. Arie Ovadia, Ms. Osnat
Ronen, Mr. Yahel Shachar, Mr. Arie Steinberg, and Mr. Avi Zeldman were determined by the Board of Directors to
be “accounting and financial experts” under the Israeli Companies Law and regulations promulgated thereunder. Dr.
Anghel, Mr. Ben-Zeev (Woolfson), Ms. Ronen, Mr. Steinberg and Mr. Zeldman also qualify as independent directors
according to U.S. law. Mr. Steinberg was also determined by the Audit Committee to be an independent (bilty taluy)
director under the Israeli Companies Law and regulations promulgated thereunder.

The Audit Committee and Board of Directors have noted the respective personal interests of the directors to be
re-elected and of Ms. Ronen. The Audit Committee and Board of Directors have further resolved and recommended to
the shareholders at the AGM, (a) to approve a compensation for Dr. Nass and Ms. Ronen commencing from the close
of the AGM and approve and ratify a compensation for Dr. Ovadia and Mr. Steinberg commencing from the date of
their respective election as directors, for their respective services to the Company as directors, equal to: (i) an annual
fee of NIS 180,000 (one hundred and eighty thousand NIS); and (ii) an attendance fee of NIS 4,000 (four thousand
NIS) per meeting, applicable from the fifth meeting per year (100% thereof for participation in person, 60% thereof by
means of communication, or 50% thereof in writing), in each such case, linked to the Israeli Consumer Price Index
published for December 2007, but in any event no less than an aggregate amount per annum equal to U.S. $50,000
(U.S. Dollars fifty thousand) previously approved by the shareholders; provided, that as long as Mr. Ben-Zeev
(Woolfson) continues to serve his current term as an external director (Dahatz) and as required by Israeli law, the
attendance fee of Mr. Steinberg, the independent (bilty taluy) director shall conform to Mr. Ben-Zeev’s attendance fee
and be 100% whether participating in person, by means of communication, or in writing, (the “Compensation”), and (b)
to approve the reimbursement of reasonable expenses incurred or to be incurred in connection with the performance of
position of the directors up for re-election and Ms. Ronen.

The Audit Committee and Board of Directors have approved, and recommended to the shareholders at the AGM, to
approve that (i) subject to the adoption of the pertinent part of Resolution 8 below, each of the directors up for
re-election and Ms. Ronen will be granted an indemnification letter; and (ii) as previously approved by the
shareholders, all directors will continue to benefit from the Company's D&O insurance policy.
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Proxies (other than those directing the proxy holders not to vote for all of the listed nominees) will be voted for the
election of all of the nominees, to hold office until the close of the next annual general meeting, unless their office
becomes vacant earlier in accordance with the provisions of the Israeli Companies Law and the Company’s Articles of
Association. In the event any one or more of such nominees shall be unable to serve, the proxies will be voted for the
election of such other person or persons as shall be determined by the proxy holder in accordance with his or her best
judgment. The Company is not aware of any reason why any of the nominees, if elected, should not be able to serve as
a director.

Name Position
Mr. Ilan Ben Dov Director and Chairman of the Board of Directors
Dr. Shlomo Nass Director
Dr. Arie Ovadia Director
Mr. Yahel Shachar Director
Mr. Arie Steinberg Director
Mr. Avi Zeldman Director

Mr. Ilan Ben Dov serves as Chairman of the Board of Directors of the Company and has been a director
since October 2009. He is currently a member and the chairman of the Investment Committee, the Hedging
Committee, the Executive (Exco) Committee and the Compensation & Nominations Committee. Mr. Ben Dov serves
as Chairman of the Board of Directors of Suny Electronics Ltd. and previously had served as its Joint Chief Executive
Officer for approximately fifteen years (until May 2009). Mr. Ben Dov also serves as Chairman of the Board of
Directors of Scailex. He also currently serves as a director of Tapuz Anashim Ltd., Derech HaLotus Ltd., Refuat
Halotus Ltd., Tao Tsuot Real Estate Ltd., Ben Dov Investments Ltd., I. Ben Dov Investments Ltd. and Harmony (Ben
Dov) Ltd., as well as subsidiaries of Suny Electronics Ltd. Mr. Ben Dov served as the Chairman of the Board of
Directors of Tao Tsuot Ltd. To the best knowledge of the Company and the Company's Directors, Mr. Ben Dov is not
a Family Member of another Interested Party (as both terms are defined in the Israeli Securities Act of 1968) in the
Company.

Dr. Shlomo Nass has been a director in the Company since November 2009, and is currently a member of the
Investment Committee. Dr. Nass is the senior partner at Dr. Shlomo Nass and Co. and also a senior partner at Kada
Buildings Ltd. Dr. Nass serves as President, Partner and Chairman of the Board of Directors in I. G. B. — Israel Global
Investments (1999) Ltd., IRS-TKB International Consultants Ltd., Chaniman Entrepreneurship Ltd., Shir Lak Ltd., M.
D. K. Touch Ltd., Hevruta Marketing Ltd. and Hevruta Consumering Ltd. and the Chairman of the Board of Directors
of Tao Tsuot Ltd. and also serves as a director on the Board of Directors of the following companies: Citi Group
Financial Products Israel Ltd. (CFPIL); Aviv Arlon Ltd., Click Software Technologies, Tempo Beer Industries Ltd.
and The Blue Shore Development Company (Tel Aviv- Herzliya) Ltd. Dr. Nass is the Vice Chairman of The Public
Advisory Committee on Trade Levies and served in the past as Chairman of the Board of Directors of The Israel
Electric Corp. and Chairman of the Board of Directors of Ayalon Insurance Co. and a director in IBC-Industrial
Buildings Corporation Ltd. (Mivnei Ta’asiya), NMC United Entertainment, Darban Investments Ltd., Tao T suot
Nadlan and Formula Systems 1985 Ltd. Dr. Nass holds a B. Sc. degree in economics and accounting, an LL.B. degree
and a Ph.D degree in law, all from Bar- Ilan University. Dr. Nass is also a Certified Public Accountant in Israel, a
member of the Israel Bar and a Certified Information System Auditor by C.I.S.A. (USA). To the best knowledge of
the Company and the Company's Directors, Dr. Nass is not a Family Member of another Interested Party (as both
terms are defined in the Israeli Securities Act of 1968) in the Company.
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Dr. Arie Ovadia was appointed as a director in the Company in November 2011. Dr. Ovadia is the managing director
of Shamrock Israel Growth Fund and serves as a director on various Board of Directors including the following
companies: Strauss Group Ltd., Israel Petrochemical Industries Ltd., Scailex, Elron Electronic Industries Ltd., Giron
Development & Building Ltd., Destiny Holdings 1993 Ltd., Destiny Investments 1993 Ltd., Destiny Assets (1991)
Ltd., Teva Naot-Distribution Ltd., Nadlan.Com Israel Ltd., Shamrock-Cinema City Ltd., Compugen Ltd., Carmel
Olpinim Ltd., Polar Investments Ltd., InterCure Ltd., Paycard Ltd., Viryant Ltd., A.A, Adav consulting Ltd., AA
accounting & management 2007 Ltd., Aanatz Consulting Ltd. & Benjamin Ovadia Consultants 2007 Ltd. (Ex.
Chairman), IQS Hydraulics & Engineering Ltd., Maxtech Technologies Ltd., Maxtech Networks Ltd. and
Mantisvision Ltd. Dr. Ovadia holds a BA in Economics and Accounting and an M.B.A degree, both from Tel-Aviv
University and a PhD in economics from the Wharton School, of the University of Pennsylvania. To the best
knowledge of the Company and the Company's Directors, Dr. Ovadia is not a Family Member of another Interested
Party (as both terms are defined in the Israeli Securities Act of 1968) in the Company.

Mr. Yahel Shachar became a director of Partner in October 2009, and is currently a member of the Investment
Committee, the Executive (Exco) Committee, the Security Committee, the Corporate Governance Committee and the
Compensation & Nominations Committee. He serves as a director on the Board of Directors of 012 Smile Telecom
Ltd. Mr. Shachar joined Scailex in December 2001 as Chief Financial Officer. For the last five and a half years Mr.
Shachar serves as Chief Executive Officer of Scailex and for the last two years as Chief Executive Officer of Suny
Electronics Ltd. Mr. Shachar is also a chairman of the Board of Directors of Tapuz Anashim Ltd. Previously, Mr.
Shachar served as Chief Operating Officer at BVR Technologies Ltd. for three years. Mr. Shachar holds an LL.B.
degree from Tel-Aviv University and an LL.M. degree from Georgetown University in Washington, D.C. and he is a
member of the Israeli and New York bar associations. To the best knowledge of the Company and the Company's
Directors, Mr. Shachar is not a Family Member of another Interested Party (as both terms are defined in the Israeli
Securities Act of 1968) in the Company.

Mr. Arie (Arik) Steinberg became a director of Partner in January 2012, and is currently a member of the Audit

Committee. He served from 2006-2010 as the Chairman of the Board of Directors of Psagot Investment House, Ltd.,

as well as other companies in the Psagot Group, leading and overseeing the business strategies of the Psagot Group.

Mr. Steinberg served as chairman on behalf of York Capital. Mr. Steinberg also served between 1999 - 2003 as CEO

of Ilanot Batucha Investment House of the IDB Group, as well as a director of the Tel-Aviv Stock Exchange and as a

director at Maalot - Israel’s rating company (business partner of S&P). Prior to that, Mr. Steinberg served as Managing
Director of Etgar - Portfolio Management Trust Co. owned by Bank Mizrahi. He has served on the Advisory Boards

of Mobileye Technologies and Novatrans Group SA. Mr. Steinberg studied Economics at Tel-Aviv University. To the

best knowledge of the Company and the Company's Directors, Mr. Steinberg is not a Family Member of another

Interested Party (as both terms are defined in the Israeli Securities Act of 1968) in the Company.
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Mr. Avraham (Avi) Zeldman became a director of Partner in February 2011, and is currently a member of the
Investment Committee, the Debt Committee and the Executive (Exco) Committee. He served from 1999-2010 as the
Chief Executive Officer of Leumi Partners Ltd., a fully owned subsidiary of Bank Leumi and as Chairman of the
Board of Directors of Leumi Mortgage Bank Ltd. from 1987-2010. In addition, he served from 1987 until 2000 as a
senior management member of Bank Leumi for private and commercial banking and as head of the banking division
responsible for all bank branches in Israel. Mr. Zeldman serves as Chairman of the Board of Directors of Fox-Weizel
Ltd. and Leumi Start Fund and as a director in the following companies: Super Pharm (Israel) Ltd., Avgol Ltd.,
Electra Consumer Products Ltd., Techno-Rov Holdings (1993) Ltd. and Archimedes Global (Cyprus) Ltd. Mr.
Zeldman studied Economics and Statistics, as well as Business Administration studies at Haifa University. To the best
knowledge of the Company and the Company’s Directors, Mr. Zeldman is not a Family Member of another Interested
Party (as both terms are defined in the Israeli Securities Act of 1968) in the Company.

It is proposed that at the AGM the following resolutions be adopted:

(1) “RESOLVED, that Messrs. Ilan Ben Dov, Dr. Shlomo Nass, Dr. Arie Ovadia, Yahel Shachar, Arie (Arik) Steinberg
and Avi Zeldman are re-elected to serve as directors of the Company until the close of the next annual general
meeting, unless their office becomes vacant earlier in accordance with the provisions of the Israeli Companies Law
and the Company’s Articles of Association;

(i) RESOLVED, that (A) the Compensation of Dr. Nass and Ms. Ronen commencing from the close of the AGM is
approved, and the Compensation of Dr. Ovadia and Mr. Steinberg commencing from the date of their respective
election as directors is approved and ratified, and (B) the reimbursement of expenses of each of the directors up
for re-election and Ms. Ronen is approved and ratified;

(iii)) RESOLVED, that (A) subject to the adoption of the pertinent part of Resolution 8 below, each of the directors up

for re-election and Ms. Ronen will be granted an indemnification letter; and (B) all directors will continue to
benefit from the Company's D&O insurance policy; and
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(@iv) RESOLVED, that these resolutions are in the best interest of the Company.”

The vote of the holders of a majority of the Ordinary Shares participating at the AGM and voting on the matter is
required for the approval of this resolution.

The Board of Directors recommends a vote FOR approval of these proposed resolutions.
ITEM 5 -
APPOINTMENT OF EXTERNAL DIRECTOR (DAHATZ)

Under the Israeli Companies Law, the Company is required to have at least two external directors (Dahatzim) on its
Board of Directors. The Board of Directors of the Company has resolved to propose to the shareholders of the
Company to re-appoint Dr. Michael Anghel as an external director (Dahatz) of the Company.

The term of office of Dr. Michael Anghel as an external director (Dahatz) of the Company expires on April 21, 2012.
The Israeli Companies Law allows the re-appointment of an existing external director (Dahatz) for a third term of
three years. The Board of Directors recommended re-appointing Dr. Michael Anghel for one additional term of three
years.

Dr. Michael J. Anghel has been an external director (Dahatz) of Partner since March 2006, and he is a member of the
Audit Committee, the Investment Committee, the Executive (Exco) Committee, the Security Committee, the
Corporate Governance Committee and the Compensation & Nominations Committee. From 1977 to 1999, he led the
Discount Investment Corporation Ltd. (of the IDB Group) activities in the fields of technology and communications.
Dr. Anghel was instrumental in founding Tevel, one of the first Israeli cable television operators and later in founding
Cellcom - the second Israeli cellular operator. In 1999 he founded CAP Ventures, an advanced technology investment
company. From 2004 to 2005, Dr. Anghel served as CEO of DCM, the investment banking arm of the Israel Discount
Bank. He has been involved in various technology enterprises and has served on the Board of Directors of various
major Israeli corporations and financial institutions including Elron, Elbit, Nice, Gilat, American Israeli Paper Mills,
Maalot (the Israeli affiliate of Standard and Poor’s) and Hapoalim Capital Markets. He currently serves on the Board of
Directors of Syneron Medical Ltd., Evogene Ltd., Gravity Visual Effects and Design Ltd., Dan Hotels Ltd., Orbotech
Ltd., Lumus Ltd., BiolineRx Ltd. and the Strauss-Group Ltd. He is also the chairman of the Center for Educational
Technology. Prior to launching his business career, Dr. Anghel served as a full-time member of the Recanati Graduate
School of Business Administration of the Tel Aviv University, where he taught finance and corporate strategy. He
currently serves as Chairman of the Tel Aviv University’s Executive Program. Dr. Anghel holds a B.A. (Economics)
from the Hebrew University in Jerusalem and an M.B.A. and Ph.D. (Finance) from Columbia University in New
York. To the best knowledge of the Company and the Company's Directors, Dr. Michael Anghel is not a "Family
Member" of another "Interested Party" (as both terms are defined in the Israeli Securities Act of 1968) in the
Company.
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As stated above, Dr. Michael Anghel was determined by the Board of Directors to be an “accounting and financial
expert” under the Israeli Companies Law and regulations promulgated thereunder. Dr. Anghel also qualifies as
independent director according to U.S. law.

Under the Israeli Companies Law and regulations promulgated under the Israeli Companies Law, the Companies
Regulations (Rules for the Compensation and Expenses for an External Director) of 2000, as amended (the
“Remuneration Regulations”), the remuneration with which we provide our external directors (Dahatzim) requires the
approval of shareholders. The Remuneration Regulations allow for several methods of remuneration of the external
directors (Dahatzim). The Remuneration Regulations also allow for reimbursement of certain expenses to external
directors (Dahatzim).

The Remuneration Regulations recognised the increased burden on, and responsibility of, the external directors
(Dahatzim). The Remuneration Regulations allow the Company to remunerate the external directors according to the
“relative method”, which is relative to the remuneration that a company pays its “other directors.” The term "other
directors" is defined in the Remuneration Regulations. It generally includes directors who are not external directors
(Dahatzim) in that company, controlling party directors, directors holding another position in the company, holding a
position in that company's controlling party or in an entity controlled by that controlling party, directors who provide
additional services on an ongoing basis to that company, the controlling party or to a company controlled by that
company's controlling party or directors who receive other remuneration from that company. We wish to continue
remunerating Dr. Michael Anghel according to the "relative method" of remuneration under the Remuneration
Regulations by paying Dr. Michael Anghel the same remuneration that the Company pays its "other directors" and its
additional external director (Mr. Barry Ben-Zeev (Woolfson). Therefore, we wish to pay Dr. Michael Anghel,
commencing from the date of the AGM, an annual fee of NIS 180,000 (one hundred and eighty thousand NIS) per
annum and an attendance fee of NIS 4,000 (four thousand NIS) per meeting, applicable from the fifth meeting per
year (100% thereof for participation in person, 60% thereof by means of communication, or 50% thereof in writing),
in each such case, linked to the Israeli Consumer Price Index published for December 2007, but in any event no less
than an aggregate amount per annum equal to U.S. $50,000 (U.S. Dollars fifty thousand) previously approved by the
shareholders; provided, that as long as Mr. Ben-Zeev (Woolfson) continues to serve his current term as an external
director (Dahatz) and as required by Israeli law, the attendance fee of Dr. Anghel shall conform to Mr. Ben-Zeev’s
attendance fee and be 100% whether participating in person, by means of communication, or in writing, (the
“Remuneration”) plus reimbursement of certain expenses.

The Audit Committee, the Board of Directors and the shareholders of the Company have resolved in 2008 that, in the
event options will be granted to Company's directors, the Company will grant options to the external directors in a
manner complying with the Remuneration Regulations. Such resolution shall continue to apply to Dr. Michael
Anghel.

The Audit Committee and Board of Directors have noted the personal interest of Dr. Michael Anghel and, in the event
of his re-appointment, approved, and recommended to the shareholders at the AGM to approve, the payment of the
Remuneration to Dr. Michael Anghel and the reimbursement of expenses to him as set forth in the Remuneration
Regulations. The Audit Committee and Board of Directors have also approved, and recommended to the shareholders
at the AGM to approve, that (i) subject to the adoption of the pertinent part of Resolution 8 below, Dr. Anghel will be
granted an indemnification letter; and (ii) as previously approved by the shareholders, Dr. Anghel will continue to
benefit from the Company's D&O insurance policy.
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The shareholders of the Company approved the appointment of Mr. Barry Ben-Zeev (Woolfson) as an external
director of the Company until October 21, 2012. He continues to serve as an external director (Dahatz) of the
Company without any change, other than as may be approved under Resolution 8 below.

It is proposed that at the AGM the following resolutions be adopted:

(1) “RESOLVED, to re-appoint Dr. Michael Anghel as an external director (Dahatz) of the Company for one additional
term of three years in accordance with the Israeli Companies Law, commencing on the date of the AGM;

(i) RESOLVED, to approve the payment of the Remuneration and the reimbursement of expenses as set forth in the
Remuneration Regulations to Dr. Michael Anghel. In the event that options will be granted to Company directors,
the Company will grant options to Dr. Michael Anghel in a manner complying with the Remuneration
Regulations. Subject to the adoption of the pertinent part of Resolution 8 below, Dr. Anghel will be granted an
indemnification letter. Dr. Anghel will continue to benefit from the Company's D&O insurance policy; and

RESOLVED, that these resolutions are in the best interest of the Company.”

The vote of the holders of a majority of the Ordinary Shares participating at the AGM and voting on the matter is
required for the approval of item no. 5(i) on the agenda; provided, that one of the following conditions is fulfilled: (i)
the majority of votes in favor of the matter shall include at least a majority of the votes of shareholders not
constituting "Controlling Parties" (as stated in the Israeli Companies Law) in the Company, or these having a Personal
Interest (as defined in the Israeli Companies Law) in the appointment approval (other than a Personal Interest not
resulting from relations to the Controlling Party) participating in the vote; which votes shall not include abstaining
votes; or (ii) the total number of objecting votes of the shareholders mentioned in clause (i) does not exceed 2% of the
total voting rights in the Company. The vote of the holders of a majority of the Ordinary Shares participating at the
AGM and voting on the matter is required for the approval of item no. 5(ii) on the agenda.

A shareholder shall notify the Company at the address above at least two Business Days (as defined in the Company's
Articles of Association) prior to the date of the AGM, whether the shareholder constitutes a "Controlling Party" in the
Company or has a Personal Interest in the appointment approval (other than a Personal Interest not resulting from
relations to the Controlling Party), as a condition for that shareholder's right to vote and be counted with respect to
item no. 5(i) on the agenda. A shareholder voting, by means of a Deed of Vote, may include such notice with regard to
a "Controlling Party" interest or a Personal Interest on the Deed of Vote (to be submitted to the Company at least
seventy two hours prior to the time of the AGM).

The Board of Directors recommends a vote FOR approval of these proposed resolutions
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ITEM 6 - AMENDMENT OF THE ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION

In recent years, the Israeli Companies Law has undergone extensive amendments. The Company proposes to amend
its Articles of Association to reflect the provisions of the Israeli Companies Law and regulations promulgated
thereunder, certain amendments of the Israeli Securities Law of 1968 (as amended) (the “Israeli Securities Law™), the
Company’s General License for the Provision of Mobile Radio Telephone Services using the Cellular Method in Israel
dated April 7, 1998, as amended (the “License”), and other updates.

The full text of the proposed amendments is annotated on the amended Articles of Association attached hereto as
Annex “C”. The summary below is qualified in its entirety by reference to the full text of the annotated Articles of
Association attached hereto as Annex "C". The proposed amendments include, inter alia, the following matters:

(i)Right of a shareholder to include an issue on the agenda of a shareholders meeting. The Israeli Companies Law
generally permits shareholders holding at least one percent of the share capital of a company to request that the
Board of Directors include a suitable issue on the agenda of a general meeting to be convened in the future. We
propose to amend Article 17.2 to conform to the Israeli Companies Law.

(ii) Adjournment of shareholders meetings. Under the Israeli Companies Law, in the event that a shareholders
meeting is adjourned for more than twenty one days, a notice of the adjourned meeting shall be given in the same
manner as the notice of the original meeting. We propose to amend Article 18.4.2 to conform to the Israeli
Companies Law.

(iii) Deed of Authorization. Our Articles of Association includes a form of Deed of Authorization for appointment of
a proxy to participate and vote at a shareholders meeting. We propose to amend Article 20.2, to (A) incorporate
into the form certain matters required by the Israeli Companies Law or by the License; and (B) also allow us to
send our shareholders prior to any shareholders meeting, a form of Deed of Authorization enabling shareholders
to authorize specified persons to vote on the issues on the agenda of a meeting in accordance with the
shareholders' instructions.
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(iv)Chairman. We propose to clarify the appointment process of the chairman of the Board of Directors in Articles
26.1.2 and 26.1.3, to state that the chairman shall serve until the earlier of (A) the date or time provided in the
appointing resolution; (B) election of a substitute chairman by the Board of Directors; (C) resignation of the
chairman from his position as chairman; or (D) cessation of the chairman’s service as a Director. In the event that
the chairman ceases to serve as chairman, the Board of Directors shall choose one of its members to serve as a
new chairman.

) Indemnification. The Israeli Companies Law was amended to permit a company to also indemnify its
Office Holders for liability or expense he incurs or that is imposed on him in his capacity as an Office
Holder in the Company, for reasonable litigation expenses incurred by the Office Holder in connection
with a financial sanction ("itzum caspi").

The Israeli Securities Law was recently amended to permit a company to indemnify its Office Holders for (A)
payment to the harmed party as result of a violation set forth in Section 52.54(a)(1)(a) of the Israeli Securities Law,
including by indemnification in advance; and (B) expenses incurred in connection with a Procedure ("halich"), as
defined in Section 56.8(a)(1) of the Israeli Securities Law, in connection with any affairs including reasonable
litigation expenses, and by indemnification in advance.

We propose to amend Articles 34.2.3-34.2.5 to conform to these amendments of the Israeli Companies Law and the
Israeli Securities Law.

(vi)Release. The Israeli Companies Law prohibits a company from releasing its Office Holders from liability
resulting, inter alia, from (A) a breach of the duty of care made intentionally or recklessly (“pezizut”) other than if
made only by negligence; (B) a fine (“knass”), a civil fine ("knass ezrahi"), a financial sanction ("itzum caspi") or a
penalty ("kofer") imposed on him; and (C) the breach of the duty of care in a Distribution (“haluka”). We propose
to amend Articles 35.3.2, 35.3.4 and 35.3.5 to conform to the Israeli Companies Law.

(vii)The License includes provisions governing cross-ownership and control restrictions with respect to any
Competing MRT Operator of the Company (other mobile telephone operators in Israel), and shareholdings and
agreements which may reduce or harm competition. We propose to incorporate these Licence provisions into our
Articles of Association by adding Article 45, instead of the restrictions in our current Article 23.2.2, which are
no longer relevant.
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The Audit Committee and Board of Directors have approved, and recommended to the shareholders at the AGM to
approve, the amendments to the Articles of Association, detailed in the form annotated on Annex “C” attached hereto,
and that these amendments are in the best interest of the Company. The Directors have noted that they all have a
Personal Interest in the indemnification and release Articles (matters (v) and (vi) above) (the “Specified Articles”).

It is proposed that at the AGM the following resolutions be adopted:

(1)“RESOLVED, that the amendments to the Articles of Association, substantially in the form annotated on Annex “C”
attached hereto, are hereby approved.

(i1) RESOLVED, that these resolutions are in the best interest of the Company.”

The vote of holders of at least seventy five percent (75%) of Ordinary Shares participating at the AGM and voting on
the matter is required for the approval of item no. 6 on the agenda; provided, that solely with respect to amendment of
the Specified Articles, one of the following conditions is also fulfilled: (i) the majority of votes in favor of the matter
shall include at least a majority of the votes of shareholders not having a Personal Interest in the resolution
participating in the vote; which votes shall not include abstaining votes; or (ii) the total number of objecting votes of
the shareholders mentioned in clause (i) does not exceed 2% of the total voting rights in the Company. In the event
that the above seventy five percent majority is obtained but the majority specified in the proviso is not obtained, the
amendments to the Articles of Association substantially in the form annotated on Annex “C” will be deemed approved
except for the Specified Articles.

A shareholder shall notify the Company at the address above at least two Business Days (as defined in the Company's
Articles of Association) prior to the date of the AGM, whether the shareholder has a Personal Interest in the Specified
Articles or not, as a condition for that shareholder's right to vote and be counted with respect to the Specified Articles.
A shareholder voting, by means of a Deed of Vote, may include said notice regarding a Personal Interest on the Deed
of Vote (to be submitted to the Company at least seventy two hours prior to the time of the AGM).

The Board of Directors recommends a vote FOR approval of these proposed resolutions
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ITEM 7 - AMENDMENTS TO THE COMPANY’S 2004 SHARE OPTION PLAN

The Company has adopted on July 12, 2004, the 2004 Share Option Plan and has amended it in 2008 and in 2009
(following shareholders approval) and has adopted certain clarificatory amendments in 2011 (the "Option Plan"). The
Board of Directors has approved on March 21, 2012, certain amendments to the Option Plan, as described below. The
Company is seeking shareholders approval for these amendments.

The Option Plan is intended to promote the interests of the Company and its shareholders by providing employees,
directors, officers and advisors of the Company with appropriate incentives and rewards to encourage them to enter
into and continue in the employ of, or service to, the Company and to acquire a proprietary interest in the long-term
success of the Company.

The exercise price of options granted under the Option Plan is determined by the Board of Directors’ committee
administering the Option Plan - the Compensation and Nomination Committee (the “Committee’), which takes into
consideration the fair-market value of the Ordinary Shares at the time of grant (as specified in the Option Plan). The
options shall generally become vested over a four-year period, unless otherwise set by the Committee. The exercise
period of an option is determined by the Committee and will not exceed ten years from the grant date thereof. The
Option Plan shall terminate on July 11, 2014, after which no further options may be issued but the provisions of the
Option Plan shall remain in full force and effect to the extent necessary to give effect to the exercise of any option
granted or exercised prior thereto or otherwise as may be required in accordance with the provisions of the Option
Plan.

As of April 1, 2012, 1,688,246 options were available for grant under the Option Plan.

The Company wishes to amend the Option Plan (the "Plan Amendments") to set ramifications of a Change of Control
(as defined in the Option Plan) transaction, to allow more-flexible determination of exercise price, to revise terms
relating to dividend adjustments of the option exercise price, and to subject amendments to shareholders approval only
as required by applicable law, in each case, as detailed below:

(i) upon a Change in Control transaction of the Company, each Option shall, at the sole and absolute discretion of the
Board of Directors, either solely or in any combination: be substituted for options to purchase shares of the
Successor Entity (as defined in the Option Plan), be assumed by the Successor Entity, be substituted for “phantom”
options of the Company or the Successor Entity (“Phantom Options”), or each non-vested Option shall become fully
exercisable, as detailed in Section 6.3 of the form of the amended Option Plan attached hereto as Annex "D".

In the event that the Ordinary Shares (or ADRs representing them) will no longer be traded on any stock exchange, at
the sole and absolute discretion of the Board of Directors, either solely or in any combination: each Option shall be
substituted for a Phantom Option, or each non-vested Option shall become fully exercisable.

(i) with respect to the exercise price under Section 8.1 of the form of the amended Option Plan attached hereto as
Annex "D", allowing the Committee, upon reasons detailed in its decision, to also determine an exercise price not
taking into consideration the fair market value of an Ordinary Share, which will not be less than the par value of
an Ordinary Share.
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(ii1) (A) with respect to options granted on or after May 8, 2012 (the date of the AGM) (or granted earlier but become
subject to this provision thereafter), substitution of the dividend-adjustment mechanism, reducing the exercise
price of such options following each dividend distribution in the ordinary course by the full dividend amount,
substantially as set forth in Section 8.1 of the form of the amended Option Plan attached hereto as Annex "D";
and (B) with respect to all options granted under the Option Plan, following each dividend distribution other than
in the ordinary course, a dividend adjustment reducing the exercise price by the full dividend amount; and

(iv) revising the terms of the Option Plan by subjecting its amendment to shareholder approval only when required
by applicable law or the rules and regulations of any stock exchange applicable from time to time to the
Company, by reason of their applicability to its shareholders or otherwise, as specified in Section 18 of the form
of the amended Option Plan attached hereto as Annex "D".

The foregoing description is only a summary and is qualified in its entirety by reference to the full text of the Plan
Amendments annotated in the amended Option Plan attached hereto as Annex "D".

The Board of Directors has noted that the proposed Plan Amendments are in line with the common practice that
prevails in the Israeli market.

The Board of Directors has noted that, in accordance with the Option Plan, certain amendments are subject to the
approval of the shareholders of the Company.

The Board of Directors has noted that having an attractive option plan has value both as an incentive as well as a
retention tool, since it would encourage the Company's team to develop and enhance the Company's business and also
would encourage others to join the Company. The Company's Board of Directors has also noted that recruiting the top
and best people to join the Company is and was key to maintaining the Company's leading position in the market and,
therefore, is in the best interest of the Company.

The Company's Board of Directors is of the opinion that it is in the Company's best interest to adopt the Plan
Amendments.

The Board of Directors has resolved to approve, and to recommend to the shareholders at the AGM to approve, the
Plan Amendments.

The Plan Amendments are to be brought to the approval of the Company's shareholders and may also require

certain Israeli regulatory approvals (the "Required Approvals"); and, hence, the Plan Amendments will enter into
force only after, and are subject to, the Company's shareholders approval and the Required Approvals.

-22 -

23



Edgar Filing: PARTNER COMMUNICATIONS CO LTD - Form 6-K

It is proposed that at the AGM the following resolutions be adopted:

(i) “RESOLVED, that the Plan Amendments, substantially annotated in the form attached hereto as Annex "D", are
hereby approved.

Without limiting the generality of the foregoing resolutions:

(A) upon a Change in Control transaction of the Company, each Option shall, at the sole and absolute discretion of the
Board of Directors, either solely or in any combination: be substituted for options to purchase shares of the Successor
Entity (as defined in the Option Plan), be assumed by the Successor Entity, be substituted for “phantom” options of the
Company or the Successor Entity (‘“Phantom Options”), or each non-vested Option shall become fully exercisable, as
detailed in Section 6.3 of the form of the amended Option Plan attached hereto as Annex "D". In the event that the
Ordinary Shares (or ADRs representing them) will no longer be traded on any stock exchange, at the sole and absolute
discretion of the Board of Directors, either solely or in any combination: each Option shall be substituted for a
Phantom Option, or each non-vested Option shall become fully exercisable.

(B) with respect to the exercise price under Section 8.1 of the form of the amended Option Plan attached hereto as
Annex "D", allowing the Committee, upon reasons detailed in its decision, to also determine an exercise price not
taking into consideration the fair market value of an Ordinary Share, which will not be less than the par value of an
Ordinary Share.

(O)(x) with respect to options granted on or after May 8, 2012 (the date of the AGM) (or granted earlier but become
subject to this provision thereafter), substitution of the dividend-adjustment mechanism, reducing the exercise price of
such options following each dividend distribution in the ordinary course by the full dividend amount, substantially as
set forth in Section 8.1 of the form of the amended Option Plan attached hereto as Annex "D"; and (y) with respect to
all options granted under the Option Plan, following each dividend distribution other than in the ordinary course, a
dividend adjustment reducing the exercise price by the full dividend amount; and

(D) revising the terms of the Option Plan by subjecting its amendment to shareholder approval only when required by
applicable law or the rules and regulations of any stock exchange applicable from time to time to the Company, by
reason of their applicability to its shareholders or otherwise, as specified in Section 18 of the form of the amended

Option Plan attached hereto as Annex "D".

(ii) RESOLVED, that the Plan Amendments will enter into force after, and are subject to, the Required Approvals;
and

RESOLVED, that the abovementioned resolutions are in the best interest of the Company”.

The vote of the holders of a majority of the Ordinary Shares participating at the AGM and voting on the matter is
required for the approval thereof.

The Board of Directors recommends a vote FOR approval of these proposed resolutions.

-23 .
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ITEM 8 - APPROVAL AND RATIFICATION OF THE GRANT OF
INDEMNIFICATION LETTERS TO DIRECTORS

The Israeli Companies Law and the Company’s Articles of Association authorize the Company, subject to the required
approvals, to indemnify in advance directors and other Office Holders (as such term is defined in the Israeli

Companies Law) of the Company for liabilities or expenses he or she incurs, or that is imposed on him or her, as a

result of action or inaction by such person (or together with other directors or officers of the Company) in his or her

capacity as a director or officer of the Company. The Israeli Companies Law combined with the Israeli Securities Law

authorize indemnification for:

(i) financial liability incurred or imposed in accordance with a judgment, including a judgment given in a settlement
or a judgment of an arbitrator approved by a court; provided, that such liability pertain to one or more of the events
set forth in the indemnification letter, which, in the opinion of the Board of Directors of the Company, are
anticipated in light of the Company’s activities at the grant of indemnification and is limited to the sum or
measurement of indemnification determined by the Board of Directors to be reasonable under the circumstances
and set forth in the indemnification letter;

(ii)reasonable litigation expenses, including legal fees, incurred or ordered by a court in the context of proceedings
filed by or on behalf of the Company or by a third party, or in a criminal proceeding in which the director or
officer is acquitted or if convicted, for an offense which does not require criminal intent;

(iii)reasonable litigation expenses, including legal fees incurred due to an investigation or proceeding conducted by
an authority authorized to conduct such investigation or proceeding and which has ended without the filing of an
indictment against the director or officer and no financial liability was imposed on the director or officer in lieu
of criminal proceedings, or has ended without the filing of an indictment against the director or officer,
but financial liability was imposed on the director or officer in lieu of criminal proceedings in an alleged criminal
offense that does not require proof of criminal intent, within the meaning of the relevant terms in the law or in
connection with financial fine (Itzum Caspi);

(iv)Payment to the harmed party as a result of a violation set forth in Section 52.54(a)(1)(a) of the Israeli Securities
Law, including by indemnification in advance; and

-4 -
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(v)Expenses incurred in connection with a Procedure ("halich"), as defined in Section 56.8(a)(1) of the Israeli
Securities Law (a ‘“Procedure”), including, without limitation, reasonable litigation expenses, and by indemnification
in advance.

The Israeli Companies Law provides that a company may not indemnify a director or officer for his or her liability
including for: (a) a breach of duty of loyalty towards the company, unless the director or officer acted in good faith
and had reasonable grounds to assume that the action would not harm the company’s best interest; (b) a breach of duty
of care done intentionally or recklessly ("pezizut") except for negligence; (c) an act intended to unlawfully yield a
personal profit; (d) a fine, civil fine ("knass ezrahi"), financial sanction (Itzum Caspi) or a penalty ("kofer") imposed
upon the director or officer; and (v) a Procedure ("halich").

On October 22, 2009 the shareholders of the Company approved the grant of an indemnification letter to each of the
Company's then current and future directors. The Company proposes to issue to all its current and future directors
including, without limitation, (i) Dr. Michael Anghel, (ii) Mr. Barry Ben-Zeev (Woolfson), (iii) Ms. Osnat Ronen, (iv)
Mr. Arie (Arik) Steinberg, (v) Mr. Avi Zeldman, (vi) Mr. Ilan Ben Dov, (vii) Dr. Shlomo Nass, (viii) Dr. Arie Ovadia,
and (ix) Mr. Yahel Shachar, in each case, serving (including prior to the date thereof) as the Company's director, or as

a director or officer on behalf of the Company in other companies (the “Indemnified Person”) a new Indemnification
Letter substantially in the form attached hereto as Annex “E” (the “Indemnification Letter”’). The Indemnification Letter is
annotated to show changes made from the version approved by the shareholders in October 2009, mainly to conform it
to the Israeli Companies Law and to update it for matters anticipated in light of our current activities and otherwise.
The description herein is qualified in its entirety by reference to the full text of the annotated proposed
Indemnification Agreement. As previously approved, the aggregate indemnification amount payable by the Company
to all the directors, officers and other indemnified persons pursuant to all letters of indemnification issued or that may
be issued to them by the Company in the future will not exceed the higher of (i) 25% of shareholders equity and (ii)
25% of market capitalization, each as measured at the time of indemnification.

For the avoidance of doubt, in the event that at the AGM any of the resolutions below will not be adopted, the current
indemnification letter granted to the pertinent Indemnified Person shall remain in full force and effect.

The Audit Committee and the Board of Directors of the Company have approved, and recommended to the
shareholders at the AGM to approve, the grant of the Indemnification Letter to each Indemnified Person and resolved
that such resolutions are in the best interest of the Company. The Directors have noted that they all have a Personal
Interest in this matter.

-25-
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It is proposed, in accordance with the Israeli Companies Law and the Company’s Articles of Association, that at the
AGM the following resolutions be adopted:

(1) “RESOLVED, to approve and ratify the Company’s undertaking to indemnify Dr. Michael Anghel and to provide
him with an Indemnification Letter;

(i) “RESOLVED, to approve and ratify the Company’s undertaking to indemnify Mr. Barry Ben-Zeev (Woolfson) and
to provide him with an Indemnification Letter;

(ii1) “RESOLVED, to approve and ratify the Company’s undertaking to indemnify Ms. Osnat Ronen and to provide her
with an Indemnification Letter;

(iv)“RESOLVED, to approve and ratify the Company’s undertaking to indemnify Mr. Arie (Arik) Steinberg and to
provide him with an Indemnification Letter;

(v)“RESOLVED, to approve and ratify the Company’s undertaking to indemnify Mr. Avi Zeldman and to provide him
with an Indemnification Letter;

(vi)“RESOLVED, to approve and ratify the Company’s undertaking to indemnify Mr. Ilan Ben Dov and to provide
him with an Indemnification Letter;

(vii)) “RESOLVED, to approve and ratify the Company’s undertaking to indemnify Dr. Shlomo Nass and to provide
him with an Indemnification Letter;

(viii) “RESOLVED, to approve and ratify the Company’s undertaking to indemnify Dr. Arie Ovadia and to provide him
with an Indemnification Letter; and

(ix) “RESOLVED, to approve and ratify the Company’s undertaking to indemnify Mr. Yahel Shachar and to provide
him with an Indemnification Letter.

RESOLVED, that these resolutions are in the best interest of the Company.”

The vote of the holders of a majority of the Ordinary Shares participating at the AGM and voting on the matter is
required for the approval of each of items no. 8(i)-8(v) on the agenda. The vote of the holders of a majority of the
Ordinary Shares participating at the AGM and voting on the matter is required for the approval of each of items no.
8(vi) and, for the sake of being cautious, items no. 8(vii)-8(ix) on the agenda; provided, that one of the following
conditions is fulfilled: (i) the majority of votes in favor of the matter shall include at least a majority of the votes of
shareholders not having a Personal Interest in the resolution participating in the vote; which votes shall not include
abstaining votes; or (ii) the total number of objecting votes of the shareholders mentioned in clause (i) does not exceed
2% of the total voting rights in the Company.
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A shareholder shall notify the Company at the address above at least two Business Days (as defined in the Company's
Articles of Association) prior to the date of the AGM, whether the shareholder has a Personal Interest in the approval
of any of items no. 8(vi)-8(ix) on the agenda or not, as a condition for that shareholder's right to vote and be counted
with respect to these items. A shareholder voting, by means of a Deed of Vote, may include said notice regarding a
Personal Interest on the Deed of Vote (to be submitted to the Company at least seventy two hours prior to the time of
the AGM).

The Board of Directors recommends a vote FOR approval of these proposed resolutions.
RESTRICTIONS ON VOTING RIGHTS

Partner conducts its operations pursuant to licenses granted to Partner by the Minister of Communications of the State
of Israel. Partner’s Articles of Association and, with respect to shareholders other than shareholders of Partner prior to
its public offering, Partner’s License contain provisions that may cause the suspension of voting rights of the holders of
Ordinary Shares or ADSs if such voting rights would breach the ownership limits contained in the License. These
limits prohibit the transfer or acquisition of 10% or more of Partner’s means of control and acquisition of control of the
Company without the consent of the Minister of Communications of Israel, and restrict cross-control and
cross-ownership of other mobile telephone operators in Israel, and shareholdings and agreements which may reduce or
harm competition. Ordinary Shares or Ordinary Shares represented by ADSs held in breach of these limits may be
considered dormant shares. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Proxy Statement, dormant shares will not
bear any rights to which the holders would otherwise be entitled, other than the right to receive dividends and other
distributions to shareholders (including the right to participate in rights offerings). Specifically, the holders of dormant
shares will not have voting rights with respect to their dormant shares, nor will they have the right to participate in
general meetings of shareholders.

Any shareholder seeking to vote at the AGM must notify the Company prior to the vote, or, if the vote is by Deed of
Vote, must so indicate on the Deed of Vote, if any of the shareholder’s holdings in Partner or the shareholder’s vote
requires the consent of the Minister of Communications due to a breach by the shareholder of the restrictions on the
transfer or acquisition of means of control or acquisition of control of Partner, or the provisions regarding
cross-ownership or cross-control of other mobile telephone operators in Israel, in each case as specified in Sections 21
and 23 of Partner’s License (a translation of Sections 21-24 of the License is attached hereto as Annex “F"). If a
shareholder does not provide such notification, the shareholder shall not vote and, if the shareholder has voted, his or
her vote shall not be counted.

By Order of the Board of Directors
YONIT RAVIV, ADV.
Acting Chief Legal Counsel

and Company Secretary

Dated: April 3, 2012
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Annex “A”

PARTNER COMMUNICATIONS COMPANY LTD.
(An Israeli Corporation)
2011 ANNUAL REPORT
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PARTNER COMMUNICATIONS COMPANY LTD.
(An Israeli Corporation)
2011 ANNUAL REPORT
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
To the Shareholders of
PARTNER COMMUNICATIONS COMPANY LTD.

We have completed integrated audits of Partner Communications Company Ltd.’s ("the Company" or "Partner")
consolidated financial statements and of its internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2011, in
accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Our opinions,
based on our integrated audits, are presented below.

Consolidated financial statements

We have audited the consolidated statement of financial position of Partner as of December 31, 2011 and 2010, and
the related consolidated statements of income, of comprehensive income, of changes in equity and of cash flows for
each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2011. These consolidated financial statements are the
responsibility of the Company’s Board of Directors and management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on
these financial statements based on our integrated audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by the Company’s Board of Directors and
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above, present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Partner as of December 31, 2011 and 2010, and the results of its operations, of changes in equity
and of its cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2011, in conformity with
International Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRS") as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board
("IASB").

Internal control over financial reporting

Also, in our opinion, the Company maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over its financial
reporting as of December 31, 2011, based on criteria established in the Internal Control-Integrated Framework issued
by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO).

Kesselman & Kesselman, Trade Tower, 25 Hamered Street, Tel-Aviv 68125, Israel, P.O Box 452 Tel-Aviv

61003 Telephone: +972 -3- 7954555, Fax:+972 -3- 7954556, www.pwc.co.il

A-2
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The Company’s Board of Directors and management are responsible for maintaining effective internal control over
financial reporting and management is responsible for the assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over
financial reporting included in the accompanying Management's Annual Report on Internal Control Over Financial
Reporting appearing under Item 15(b). Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Company’s internal control over financial reporting based on our integrated audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective internal control over
financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audit of internal control over financial reporting
includes obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material
weakness exists and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the
assessed risk. Our audit also includes performing such other procedures as we consider necessary in the
circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding
the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control over financial reporting includes those
policies and procedures that (i) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company; (ii) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance
with authorizations of management and directors of the Company; and (iii) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company’s assets that could have
a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements.
Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.

Tel-Aviv, Israel Kesselman & Kesselman
March 21, 2012 Certified Public Accountants (Isr.)
A member of PricewaterhouseCoopers
International Limited
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PARTNER COMMUNICATIONS COMPANY LTD.

(An Israeli Corporation)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents

Trade receivables

Other receivables and prepaid expenses
Deferred expenses — right of use
Inventories

Income tax receivable

Derivative financial instruments

NON CURRENT ASSETS

Trade Receivables

Deferred expenses — right of use

Assets held for employee rights upon retirement, net
Advance payment in respect of the acquisition of 012 smile
Property and equipment

Licenses and other intangible assets

Goodwill

Deferred income tax asset

TOTAL ASSETS

Note

14
10

14
19

11
12
12(c),5
27

New Israeli Shekels

2010

321
1,331
71

101

1,830
632
30
2,058
1,077
3,797

5,627

December 31,
2011
In millions

532
1,518
41

19
162
12

24
2,308

856
142
3

2,051
1,290
407
30
4,779

7,087

The financial statements were authorized for issue by the board of directors on March 21, 2012.

Haim Romano Ziv Leitman

Chief Executive Officer

Chief Financial Officer

Convenience
translation

into U.S.
dollars
(note 2a)
2011
139
397

11

43

604
224
37

537
338
107
1,252

1,856

Barry Ben-Zeev (Woolfson)

Director
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PARTNER COMMUNICATIONS COMPANY LTD.
(An Israeli Corporation)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

New Israeli Shekels
December 31,
2010 2011
Note In millions

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Current maturities of notes payable and other liabilities and
current borrowings 16,17,18 628 498
Trade payables 771 913
Parent group - trade 28 72 142
Other payables 13 264 216
Deferred revenue 51 52
Provisions 15 26 65
Derivative financial instruments 7 3 3
Income tax payable 11

1,826 1,889
NON CURRENT LIABILITIES
Notes payable 17 1,836 2,605
Bank borrowings 16 1,252 2,068
Liability for employee rights upon retirement, net 19 54 48
Dismantling and restoring sites obligation 15 23 25
Other non-current liabilities 18 8 10
Deferred tax liability 27 2 17

3,175 4,773
TOTAL LIABILITIES 5,001 6,662
EQUITY 23
Share capital - ordinary shares of NIS 0.01
par value: authorized - December 31, 2010
and 2011 - 235,000,000 shares;
issued and outstanding - 2 2
December 31, 2010 — *155,249,176 shares
December 31, 2011 — —*155,645,708 shares
Capital surplus 1,099 1,100
Accumulated deficit (124 (326
Treasury shares, at cost - December 31, 2010

and 2011 - 4,467,990 shares (351 (351

TOTAL EQUITY 626 425
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 5,627 7,087

Convenience
translation

into U.S.
dollars
(note 2a)

2011

130
239
37
57
14
17

495

682
541
13

1,249

1,744

288
(85

92
112
1,856
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* Net of treasury shares

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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PARTNER COMMUNICATIONS COMPANY LTD.
(An Israeli Corporation)
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

Convenience
translation
Into U.S.
Dollars
New Israeli Shekels (note 2a)
Year ended December 31
2009 2010 2011 2011
Note In millions (except earnings per share)
Revenues, net 6 6,079 6,674 6,998 1,831
Cost of revenues 6, 12,24 3,770 4,093 4,978 1,303
Gross profit 2,309 2,581 2,020 528
Selling and marketing expenses 24,12 387 479 711 186
General and administrative expenses 24 290 306 291 76
Impairment of goodwill 12(c) 87 23
Other income, net 25 69 64 105 28
Operating profit 1,701 1,860 1,036 271
Finance income 26 28 28 39 10
Finance expenses 26 204 209 333 87
Finance costs, net 26 176 181 294 77
Profit before income tax 1,525 1,679 742 194
Income tax expenses 27 384 436 299 78
Profit for the year 1,141 1,243 443 116
Earnings per share
Basic 7.42 8.03 2.85 0.75
Diluted 29 7.37 7.95 2.84 0.74
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
A-6
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PARTNER COMMUNICATIONS COMPANY LTD.

(An Israeli Corporation)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Note

Profit for the year
Other comprehensive
income (losses):
Actuarial gains (losses) on defined
benefit plan 19
Income taxes relating to actuarial
gains (losses) on defined benefit
plan 27
Other comprehensive income
(losses)

for the year, net of income taxes

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME FOR THE YEAR

New Israeli Shekels
Year ended December 31
2009 2010
In millions

1,141 1,243

16 (8 )

(4 ) 2

12 (6 )

1,153 1,237

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

A-7

2011

443

(21

(16

427

Convenience
translation
into U.S.
dollars
(note 2a)
2011

116

§ )

(4 )

112
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PARTNER COMMUNICATIONS COMPANY LTD.

(An Israeli Corporation)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Note

New Israeli Shekels:
BALANCE AT JANUARY
1, 2009

CHANGES DURING THE
YEAR ENDED
DECEMBER 31,2009

Total comprehensive
income for the year
Exercise of options granted
to employees
Employee share-based
compensation expenses
Dividend 23
BALANCE AT
DECEMBER 31, 2009

CHANGES DURING THE
YEAR ENDED
DECEMBER 31, 2010

Total comprehensive income
for the year

Exercise of options granted
to employees

Employee share-based
compensation expenses
Capital reduction (see note
23(d))

Dividend 23
BALANCE AT
DECEMBER 31, 2010

CHANGES DURING THE

YEAR ENDED

DECEMBER 31, 2011

Total comprehensive income

for the year

Exercise of options granted

to employees 23

Share capital

Number of
Shares**

153,419,394

1,020,742

154,440,136

809,040

155,249,176

396,532

Capital
surplus

2,446

37

2,483

16

(1,400)

1,099

Accumulated Treasury
deficit shares
Inmillions

365 ) (351 )

1,153

22
(982 )

a7z ) (351 )

1,237

23

(1,212)

124 ) (351 )

427

Total

1,732

1,153
37

22
982 )

1,962

1,237
16
23

(1,400)
(1,212)

626

427
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Employee share-based
compensation expenses

Dividend 23
BALANCE AT

DECEMBER 31, 2011

Convenience translation into
U.S. Dollars (note 2a):
BALANCE AT JANUARY
1,2011

CHANGES DURING
THE YEAR ENDED
DECEMBER 31, 2011
Total comprehensive income
for the year
Exercise of options granted
to employees 23
Employee share-based
compensation expenses
Dividend
BALANCE AT
DECEMBER 31, 2011

155,645,708

155,249,176

396,532

155,645,708

* Representing an amount less than 1 million.

** Net of treasury shares.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

1,100

288

288

19
(648

(326

(32

112

(170

(85

)
)

)

)
)

(351 )

92 )

92 )

19

648 )

425

165

112

(170 )

112
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PARTNER COMMUNICATIONS COMPANY LTD.

(An Israeli Corporation)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES:

Cash generated from operations (Appendix A)
Income tax paid

Net cash provided by operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING
ACTIVITIES:

Acquisition of property and equipment
Acquisition of intangible assets

Advance payment in respect of the acquisition
of 012 Smile

Acquisition of 012 smile, net of cash acquired
of NIS 23 million (Appendix B)

Interest received

Proceeds from sale of property and equipment
Proceeds from derivative financial
instruments, net

Net cash used in investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING
ACTIVITIES:

Proceeds from exercise of stock options
granted to employees

Non-current bank borrowings received
Proceeds from issuance of notes payable, net
of issuance costs

Dividend paid

Capital reduction (see note 23(d))
Repayment of finance lease

Interest paid

Repayment of current borrowings
Repayment of non-current bank borrowings
Repayment of notes payable

Net cash used in financing activities

Note

27

11
12

26

16

17
23

26
16
16
17

2009

2,092
(339
1,753

(526
(231

24
(732

37
300

446
(986

@
(89
(20

(557
876

New Israeli Shekels
Year ended December 31
2010

In millions

2,384
) (426
1,958

) (361
) (105

(30

) (486

16
1,000

990
) (1,209
(1,400
) G
) (118

) (756
) (1,480

~— O N

2011

1,881
(311
1,570

(349
(155

(597
12

(1,085

900

1,136
(659

4

(235
(128
(699
(586
(274

N N e S N N

(Continued) - 1

Convenience
translation
into U.S.
dollars
(note 2a)

2011

491
(81 )
410

o1 )
(41 )

(156 )

(284 )

236

297
172 )

¢!
(62
(33
(183
(153
(71

~— N N
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INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS 145 (8 ) 211 55

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
BEGINNING OF YEAR 184 329 321 84

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
END OF YEAR 329 321 532 139

* Representing an amount of less than 1 million.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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PARTNER COMMUNICATIONS COMPANY LTD.
(An Israeli Corporation)
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Appendix A— Cash generated from operations and supplemental information

Cash generated from operations:
Profit for the year

Adjustments for:

Depreciation and amortization
Amortization of deferred
expenses- Right of use
Impairment of deferred expenses-
Right of use

Impairment of goodwill
Impairment of intangible assets
Employee share based
compensation expenses
Liability for employee rights upon
retirement, net

Finance costs, net

Gain (loss) from change in fair
value of derivative financial
instruments

Interest paid

Interest received

Deferred income taxes

Income tax paid

Capital loss from property and
equipment

Changes in operating assets and
liabilities:

Decrease (increase) in accounts
receivable:

Trade

Other

Note

11,12

14
14,
12(b)
12(c)
12

23

19
26

26
26
27
27

11

2009

1,141

577

22

(18
89
¢!
63
339

(229

)

New Israeli Shekels
Year ended December 31,
2010 2011

In millions

1,243 443
669 743
29
148
87
16 114
23 19
8 (26
53 71
6 (19
118 235
@] ) (12
18 2
426 311
3 2
Q14 ) (190
40 ) 44

(Continued)

-2

Convenience
translation

nto

U.S. dollars

(note 2a)

2011

116

194

38
23
30

@
19

S
62
€

81

(50
11

42



Edgar Filing

Increase (decrease) in accounts
payable and accruals:

Parent group - trade

Trade

Other payables

Provisions

Deferred revenue

Increase in deferred expenses -
Right of use

Current income tax liability
Decrease (increase) in inventories
Cash generated from operations:

* Representing an amount less than 1 million.

Supplementary information
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1,881
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(10
(24

@
3
(15
491

At December 31, 2009, 2010 and 2011, trade payables include NIS 179 million, NIS 220 million and NIS 217 million,

respectively, in respect of acquisition of intangible assets and property and equipment.

At December 31, 2009, 2010 and 2011, tax withholding related to dividend of approximately NIS 14 million, NIS 17
million and NIS 6 million, respectively is outstanding, see also note 23(c).

These balances are recognized in the cash flow statements upon payment.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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PARTNER COMMUNICATIONS COMPANY LTD.

(An Israeli Corporation)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Appendix B — Acquisition of 012 Smile

(Concluded) - 3

On March 3, 2011, the Company acquired 012 Smile. The fair values of assets acquired and liabilities assumed were
as follows (see also note 5):

Current assets

Deferred expenses — right of use

Property and equipment

Intangible assets

Goodwill

Other non-current assets

Short term bank borrowings and current maturities of long-term
borrowings

Accounts payables and provisions

Long term bank borrowings

Less: Advance payment in respect of the acquisition of 012 Smile
Less: cash acquired
Net cash used in the acquisition of 012 Smile

NIS in millions
295
282
159
408
494
21

(201
(229
(579
650
(30
(23
597
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PARTNER COMMUNICATIONS COMPANY LTD.
(An Israeli Corporation)
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1 - GENERAL
a.Reporting entity

Partner Communications Company Ltd. ("the Company", "Partner") is a leading Israeli provider of
telecommunications services under the orange™ brand. The address of the Company's Principal Executive Offices is 8
Amal Street, Afeq Industrial Park, Rosh-Ha'ayin 48103, Israel.

The Company's share capital consists of ordinary shares, which are traded on the Tel Aviv Stock Exchange ("TASE")
under the symbol "PTNR". American Depositary Shares ("ADSs"), each representing one of the Company’s ordinary
shares, are quoted on the NASDAQ Global Select Market™, under the symbol "PTNR". See also note 23 (a).

The ultimate holding company is Suny Electronics Ltd., since it is the parent company of Scailex Corporation Ltd,
which is the Company's parent company as of October 28, 2009 ("Scailex", "Parent group"). Prior to that date the
Company's parent company was Hutchison Telecommunications International Limited ("Hutchison Telecom")
through Advent Investments Pte Ltd.

On March 3, 2011, the Company completed the acquisition of 012 Smile Telecom Ltd. ("012 Smile"), from
Merhav-Ampal Energy Ltd. 012 Smile provides international long distance services, internet services and local
telecommunication fixed-line services (including telephony services using Voice Over Boradband ("VOB")) under the
012 Smile brand. See also note 5.

These consolidated financial statements of the Company as at December 31, 2011, are comprised of the Company and
its subsidiaries and partnerships (the "Group"). See list of subsidiaries and partnerships and principles of consolidation
in note 2 (c).

b.Operating segments
The Group provides telecommunications services in the following two segments (see note 6):
(1)Cellular communication services: airtime and content;

Content services include mainly voice mail, text and multimedia messaging, as well as downloadable wireless data
applications, including ring tones, music, games, and other informational content. Generally, these enhanced features
and data application generate additional service revenues through monthly subscription fees of increased usage
utilization of the features and applications. Other optional services, such as equipment extended warranty plans are
also provided for a monthly fee and are either sold separately or included in rate plan packages.

(2)Fixed-line communication services, that include: (1) Internet services ("ISP") that provides access to the internet
as well as home WiFi networks, including Value Added Services ("VAS") such as anti-virus and anti-spam
filtering; (2) Transmission services; (3) fixed-line voice communication services provided through Voice Over
Broadband ("VOB") and Primary Rate Interface ("PRI"); (4) International Long Distance services ("ILD"):
outgoing and incoming international telephony, hubbing, roaming and signaling and calling card services.
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The cellular segment and the fixed-line segment also include operations of equipment selling: mainly handsets,
phones, modems, datacards, domestic routers, and related equipment.
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PARTNER COMMUNICATIONS COMPANY LTD.
(An Israeli Corporation)
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1 - GENERAL (continued)
c. Cellular segment licenses

The Company operates under a license granted by the Israeli Ministry of Communications ("MOC") to operate a
cellular telephone network. The license is valid through 2022. The Company is entitled to request an extension of the
license for an additional period of six years and then renewal for one or more additional six year periods. Should the
license not be renewed, the new license-holder is obliged to purchase the communications network and all the rights
and obligations of the subscribers for a fair price, as agreed between the parties or as determined by an arbitrator.
Under the terms of the license, the Company provided a bank guarantee in NIS equivalent of USD 10 million to the
State of Israel to secure the Company's adherence to the terms of the license.

The license authorizes the Company to provide mobile telephone services within the State of Israel as well as offer
roaming services outside the State of Israel. In May 2000, the Company was also granted a license from the Israeli
Civil Administration, to provide mobile services to the Israeli populated areas in the West Bank. The license is
effective until April 7, 2013. The Company believes that it will be able to receive an extension to this license upon
request. The Company provided a bank guarantee in NIS equivalent of USD 0.5 million to the State of Israel to
secure the Company's adherence to the terms of the license.

See note 2 (g) (1) for the accounting policy in respect of the Group's licenses.
d. Fixed-line segment licenses

ISP licenses:
In March 2001, the Company received a special license granted by the MOC, allowing the Company through its own
facilities to provide internet access to land-line network customers: Internet Service Provider (ISP). The license was
renewed in April 2008 and is valid until April 2013. The Company believes that it will be able to receive an
extension to this license upon request.
012 Smile also holds an ISP license to supply internet access and Wi-Fi services which is valid until December 2014.
The license may be extended for various periods. The Group believes that it will be able to receive an extension to
this license upon request.

ILD license:
012 Smile also holds a license for the provision of International Long Distance services (ILD). The license is valid

until December 2030, with possible extensions for one or more successive periods of ten years.

A-13
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PARTNER COMMUNICATIONS COMPANY LTD.
(An Israeli Corporation)
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1 - GENERAL (continued)
d. Fixed-line segment licenses(continued)
Land-line and VOB and DFL licenses:

Partner Land-line Communication Solutions - Limited Partnership, which is fully owned by the Company, holds a
license for the provision of domestic land-line telecommunications services including the right to offer VOB services
using the infrastructure of Bezeq The Israel Telecommunication corp. Ltd and HOT- Telecommunication Systems
Ltd (leading fixed communication infrastructure services providers in Israel) to access customers and to provide them
with land-line telephony service and the provision of transmission and data communications services that were
previously provided for under a transmission license that was granted in July 2006.

The license expires in 20 years but may be extended by the MOC for successive periods of 10 years provided that the
licensee has complied with the terms of the license and has acted consistently for the enhancement of telecom
services. The Company deposited a bank guarantee in the amount of NIS 10 million with the MOC upon receiving
the license which shall be used to secure the Company's obligations under the License. In addition it holds a domestic
land-line license to provide land-line services to the Israeli populated areas in the West Bank. The last license is
effective until March 2019.

012 Telecom Ltd., which is a wholly-owned subsidiary of 012 Smile, holds a license for the provision of stationary
domestic telecommunication services including provision of domestic telecommunication services using VOB
technology.

The license was granted for a period of 20 years. At the end of the license period, the MOC may extend the license
for one or more successive periods of ten years.

Endpoint Network Services licenses:

The Company holds a special license granted by the MOC allowing it to provide certain telecom services, including
providing and installing equipment and cabling, representing the subscriber with local fixed operators, and
establishing and operating control facilities within a subscriber’s premises. The license is valid until February 2017.

012 Smile received a license to supply, install, operate and maintain all types of endpoint network equipment,
including central switchboards, telephone cables, connection closets, etc. The license is valid until December 2014
and may be extended for various periods. The Group believes that it will be able to receive an extension to this license
upon request.

012 Smile provided the State of Israel with an unconditional bank guarantee of NIS 23 million to ensure compliance
with the provisions of the VoB and DFL license and the international telecommunications services license. The
guarantee will be in effect for a period ending two years after the end of the licenses period, or until the date on which

the Company fulfills all of its obligations under the licenses.

See note 2 (g) (1) for the accounting policy in respect of the Group's licenses.
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PARTNER COMMUNICATIONS COMPANY LTD.
(An Israeli Corporation)
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1 - GENERAL (continued)
e. Main recent regulatory developments
(1) Reduction of interconnect tariffs to be paid to cellular operators

In September 2010, the interconnect tariffs payable to Israeli cellular operators by other Israeli telecommunications
operators were changed as follows:

ethe maximum interconnect tariff payable by a telecommunications operator to a cellular operator for the completion
of a call on its cellular network was reduced from the previous tariff of NIS 0.251 per minute to NIS 0.0687 per
minute effective January 1, 2011; to NIS 0.0634 per minute effective January 1, 2012; to 0.0591 per minute
effective January 1, 2013; and to NIS 0.0555 per minute effective January 1, 2014; and

ethe maximum interconnect tariff payable by a telecommunications operator to a cellular operator for sending an
SMS message to its cellular network was reduced from the then current tariff of NIS 0.0285 to NIS 0.0016 effective
January 1, 2011; to NIS 0.0015 effective January 1, 2012; to NIS 0.0014 effective January 1, 2013; and to NIS
0.0013 effective January 1, 2014.

The tariffs do not include VAT and are to be updated annually on January 1 of each year starting January 1, 2011 as
follows: linked to the CPI, using the average annual CPI for the year 2009 (as defined by the Israeli Central Bureau of
Statistics) as the basic CPI. Accordingly the CPI-adjusted tariff per minute effective January 1, 2011 is NIS 0.0728,
and effective January 1, 2012 is NIS 0.0690; and the CPI-adjusted tariff for sending SMS message effective January 1,
2011 is NIS 0.0017, and effective January 1, 2012 is NIS 0.0016. The tariffs will also be increased by the percentage
of royalties payable to the MOC by the operator.

On June 6, 2011, the Company's petition in respect of the above, filed on November 14, 2010 with the Supreme Court
of Justice against the Ministry of Communications' decision to reduce interconnect tariffs, was dismissed with
prejudice with the Company's consent.

(2)New operators

The MOC granted MVNO licenses to a number of companies which are expected to increase competition in the
market. These operators are expected to launch their operations during 2012 while one operator began operating in
December 2011. Two of the Group's competitors have signed agreements with MVNOs to offer access to their
network structure. In December 2011, the Group signed an agreement with Alon Cellular Itd. for the use of the
Group's network as an MVNO.

In September 2010, the MOC published a UMTS frequencies allocation tender offer in the 2100 Mhz spectrum for

two additional cellular operators. As a result, the UMTS frequencies were ultimately awarded to MIRS (whose license
was amended accordingly) and Golan Telecom Ltd., that was granted a license in December 2011.
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PARTNER COMMUNICATIONS COMPANY LTD.
(An Israeli Corporation)
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1 - GENERAL (continued)
e.Main recent regulatory developments (continued)
(3)Termination of structural separation period

In February 2011, the regulations prohibiting cellular operators from providing international services and prohibiting a
cellular operator from having significant influence over an international landline operator were amended to allow
cellular operators to have significant influence over an international landline operator upon the earlier of the
following: December 31, 2012, or publication of a notification by the Director General of the Ministry of
Communications with respect to one of the following (1) an MVNO has begun to operate; (2) an international
operator can begin to operate as an MVNO. In addition, the Ministry of Communications may allow a cellular
operator to have significant influence over an international landline operator before these conditions are met, provided
that “structural separation” is maintained between the long distance operations and the cellular operator’s business. In
December 2011, the Ministry of Communications formally announced that an MVNO had begun to operate, hence the
"structural separation" ceased.

Following, on December 25, 2011 the Group announced a change in the organizational structure, in which the
infrastructure and headquarters parallel activities of Partner and 012 Smile will be merged and integrated. As part of
the integration strategy between Partner and 012 Smile, along with maintaining separate segments (cellular and
fixed-line), the headquarter services of the group, including human resources, finance, legal, procurement and
logistics, will be integrated and will be provided jointly under an integrated management.

The fixed-line segment operations (see note 1(b)(2)) were united under the responsibility of one senior officer.
(4)Consumer protection regulations

As part of an amendment to the Telecommunications Law, effective February 2011, customers with commitment

agreements for no more than 100 cellular telephone lines that terminate a commitment agreement during the

commitment period may not be charged a penalty that exceeds 8% of the subscriber's average monthly bill for

operator’s services until termination, multiplied by the balance of the remaining number of months in the commitment
period. For commitment agreements signed prior to February 1, 2011, these new provisions will apply to subscribers

with no more than 50 cellular telephone lines.

In August 2011, an additional amendment to the Telecommunications Law was enacted with respect to exit fees
charged from subscribers of various other telecommunications operators: cable and satellite, internet, fixed line
telephony and international telephony. According to the amendment, new subscribers may not be charged exit fees
while existing subscribers with average monthly bills lower than NIS 5000, may be charged exit fees of no more than
8% of the subscriber's average monthly bill for operator’s services until termination, multiplied by the balance of the
remaining number of months in the commitment period.

As a result, the Company recorded an impairment of subscriber acquisition costs, see note 2(j) and 2(g)(5) and 12(2).

(5) Increase in future corporate tax rate: see note 27.
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(6)Royalty payments: see note 20.
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PARTNER COMMUNICATIONS COMPANY LTD.
(An Israeli Corporation)
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NOTE 2 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
a.Basis of preparation of the financial statements
(1)Statement of compliance
The consolidated financial statements of the Company as of December 31, 2011 ("the financial statements") have been
prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), as issued by the International

Accounting Standards Board (IASB).

The principle accounting policies set out below have been consistently applied to all periods presented unless
otherwise stated.

(2)Use of estimates and judgments
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates, and requires management to exercise its judgment in the process of applying the Group's accounting

policies. Areas involving a higher degree of judgment or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are
significant to the financial statements are disclosed in note 4.

A-17
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PARTNER COMMUNICATIONS COMPANY LTD.
(An Israeli Corporation)
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

NOTE 2 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
a.Basis of preparation of the financial statements (continued)
(3) Basis of measurement

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the basis of historical cost convention except for the
following assets and liabilities:

(a) Derivative financial instruments are measured and presented at their fair values through profit or loss.

(b)Property and equipment were revalued to the fair value on the transition date to IFRS as deemed cost, see note

2().

(c)Assets held and liability for employee rights upon retirement, net, is valued based on the present value of the
defined benefit obligation less fair value of the plan assets, see note 19.

(d) Until December 31, 2003 the Israeli economy was considered hyperinflational according to IFRS,
therefore the value of non-monetary assets, licenses and equity items have been adjusted for changes in
the general purchasing power of the Israeli currency — NIS, based upon changes in the Israeli Consumer
Price Index ("CPI") until December 31, 2003.

(e)Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed upon the business combination of
acquiring 012 Smile were initially recognized at fair value as of the acquisition date March 3, 2011.

(f)Goodwill is initially measured as the excess of the aggregate of the consideration transferred over the net fair value
of identifiable assets acquired, liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed.

(4)Convenience translation into U.S. Dollars (USD or $)

The NIS figures at December 31, 2011 and for the period then ended have been translated into dollars using the
representative exchange rate of the dollar at December 31, 2011 (USD 1 = NIS 3.821). The translation was made
solely for convenience, is supplementary information, and is distinguished from the financial statements. The
translated dollar figures should not be construed as a representation that the Israeli currency amounts actually
represent, or could be converted into, dollars.

b.Foreign currency translations
(1)Functional and presentation currency
Items included in the financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in
which the Company and its subsidiaries and partnerships operate (the "functional currency"). The consolidated

financial statements are measured and presented in New Israeli Shekels ("NIS"), which is the Group's functional and
presentation currency. The amounts presented in NIS millions are rounded to the nearest NIS million.
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PARTNER COMMUNICATIONS COMPANY LTD.
(An Israeli Corporation)
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

NOTE 2 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
b.Foreign currency translations (continued)
(2)Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the
dates of the transactions or valuation where items are re-measured. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from
the settlement of such transactions and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in the income statement.

c.Principles of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its wholly-owned subsidiaries and
partnerships.

Subsidiaries and partnerships are all entities over which the Company has the power to govern the financial and
operating policies generally accompanying a shareholding of more than half of the voting rights. Subsidiaries and
partnerships are fully consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the Company.

The Group applies the acquisition method to account for business combinations. The consideration transferred for the
acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair value of the assets transferred, and the liabilities incurred to the former owners of
the acquiree. Identifiable assets acquired, liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination are
measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date. Acquisition- related costs are expensed as incurred.

Inter-company transactions, balances, income and expenses on transactions between group companies are eliminated.
Profits and losses resulting from inter-company transactions that are recognised in assets are also eliminated.
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Company.

List of wholly owned Subsidiaries and partnerships:

012 Smile Telecom ltd.

012 Telecom ltd.

012 Global, inc.

Partner Land-Line Communication Solutions - Limited Partnership
Partner Future Communications 2000 Limited ("PFC")

Partner Business Communications Solution - Limited Partnership
Partner Net Limited

d.Operating Segments
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the Chief Executive
Officer (regarded as Chief Operation Decision-Maker, CODM) who is responsible for allocating resources and

assessing performance of the operating segments. The segments identified are: (1) cellular business and; (2) fixed line
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business. See also note 6.

57



Edgar Filing: PARTNER COMMUNICATIONS CO LTD - Form 6-K

PARTNER COMMUNICATIONS COMPANY LTD.
(An Israeli Corporation)
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

NOTE 2 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
e. Inventories

Inventories of cellular handsets and fixed telephones, related accessories, spare parts, ISP modems and related
equipment are stated at the lower of cost or net realizable value. Cost is determined on the "first-in, first-out" basis.
The Group determines its allowance for inventory obsolescence and slow moving inventory, based upon expected
inventory turnover, inventory ageing and current and future expectations with respect to product offerings.

f. Property and equipment

On January 1, 2008, the transition date to IFRS, the Company adopted an exemption provided in IFRS1 allowing the
measurement of the Company's property and equipment as of the transition date to IFRS at fair value, and to use this
value as its deemed cost as of that date. The deemed cost was based upon an appraisal, performed by management
with the assistance of independent appraisers.

Subsequent purchases of property and equipment are initially stated at cost.

Property and equipment assets that were acquired in a business combination were recognized at fair value as of the
acquisition date (See note 5).

Costs are included in the assets' carrying amounts or recognized as separate assets, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance that do not meet the above criteria are charged to the statement
of income during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Costs include expenditures that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset. The cost of self-constructed
assets includes the cost of materials and direct labor, any other costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to a
working condition for its intended use, and the costs of dismantling and removing the items and restoring the site on
which they are located. Purchased software that is integral to the functionality of the related equipment is capitalized
as part of that equipment.

Changes in the obligation to dismantle and remove assets on sites and to restore the sites on which they are located,
other than changes deriving from the passing of time, are added or deducted from the cost of the assets in the period in
which they occur. The amount deducted from the cost of the asset shall not exceed the balance of the carrying amount

on the date of change, and any balance is recognized immediately in profit or loss, See (r) below.

Property and equipment is presented less accumulated depreciation, and accumulated impairment losses.
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PARTNER COMMUNICATIONS COMPANY LTD.
(An Israeli Corporation)
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

NOTE 2 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
f. Property and equipment (continued)

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method over the estimated useful economic lives of the assets, as
follows:

years
Communications network:
10 - 25 (mainly 15,

Physical layer and infrastructure 10)
3-15 (mainly 5,
Other Communication network 10, 15)

Computers, software and hardware for

information systems 3-10 (mainly 3-5)
Office furniture and equipment 7-15

Optic fibers and related assets 7-25 (mainly 20)
Property 25

Leasehold improvements are depreciated by the straight-line method over the term of the lease (including reasonably
assured option periods), or the estimated useful economic life (5-10 years) of the improvements, whichever is shorter.

On October 25, 2010 the Company signed an agreement with LM Ericsson Israel Ltd. ("Ericsson") for the upgrade of
its existing networks and the deployment of a fourth generation network in Israel (the "Agreement"). The Agreement
includes the upgrade, replacement and the expansion of certain parts of the Company's existing cellular and fixed line
networks and the maintenance of the networks, including enhancement of the Company's abilities with respect to the
cellular and fixed line ISP services it provides. The commercial operation of the fourth generation network by the
Company is subject to the allocation of the relevant frequencies by the Ministry of Communications. The term of the
Agreement is until December 31, 2014, whereas the replacement of the Company's switches and radio equipment is
scheduled to be carried out by the end of the year 2013. The total net amount, following all discounts and settlements,
some of which are conditional, that the Company will be required to pay, in quarterly installments throughout the term
of the Agreement, for the capital expenditure and maintenance services is approximately USD 100 million
(approximately NIS 360(*) million). The Company allocates the net amount between capital expenditures and
maintenance based on their relative fair values. The amount relating to support and maintenance is approximately
USD 12 million (approximately NIS 43(*) million). The transaction resulted in accelerated depreciation of the
replaced equipment, throughout the replacement period, whereas the main impact of the accelerated depreciation
occurred during 2011. The Company recorded a depreciation acceleration of NIS 16 million in the fourth quarter of
2010, and of NIS 67 million in 2011. 